

**BYLAWS**  
**OF**  
**STONEBRIDGE LAKES CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.**

1. IDENTITY

These are the Bylaws of STONEBRIDGE LAKES CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC., hereinafter called the "Association", a corporation not for profit under the laws of the State of Florida. These Bylaws are adopted for the purpose of governing the Association and incorporate by reference the terms and conditions of the Articles of Incorporation of the Association and of the Declaration of Condominium referred to therein.

1.1 The Office of the Association shall be at c/o Sentry Management, Inc., 2180 West S.R. 434, Suite 5000, Longwood, Florida, 32779.

1.2 The Fiscal Year of the Association shall be the calendar year.

1.3 The Seal of the Association shall bear the name of corporation, the word "Florida", and the words "Corporation Not For Profit".

2. MEMBERS' MEETINGS

2.1 The annual members' meeting shall be held at least once each year at the office of the Association unless otherwise designated by the Board of Directors, at a time and date determined by the Board. Such annual members' meetings shall be for the purpose of transacting annual business of the Association authorized to be transacted by the members.

2.2 Special members' meetings shall be held whenever called by the President or by a majority of the Board of Directors, and must be called by such officer upon receipt of a written request from members entitled to cast ten percent (10%) of the votes of the entire membership. Provided, however, until Developer has relinquished control of the Association, no special members' meetings shall be called or convened for the purpose of removal of the Directors appointed by the Developer or to amend this Declaration or its exhibits to remove rights and reservations in the Developer.

2.3 Notice of all members' meetings with an agenda stating the time and place and the object for which the meeting is called shall be given by the President or Secretary. Such notice shall be in writing (unless waived by the Unit Owner in writing) to each member at his address as it is on the books of the Association and shall be given not less than fourteen (14) continuous days prior to the date of the meeting. An

*Exhibit "D"*

Officer of the Association shall provide an Affidavit, to be included in the official records of the Association, affirming that a Notice of the Association meeting was mailed or hand delivered, in accordance with this provision, to each unit owner at the addresses last furnished to the Association. Notice of a meeting may be waived in writing before or after the meeting. If it is an annual meeting, the Notice shall also be posted in a conspicuous place on the condominium property at least 14 continuous days in advance of the meeting and if not an annual meeting, 48 continuous hours in advance of the meeting, except in emergency. Notice of any meeting in which assessments against unit owners are to be considered for any reason shall specifically contain a statement that assessments will be considered and the nature of such assessments.

2.4 A quorum at members meeting shall consist of a majority of the voting interests entitled to cast votes of the entire membership. The acts approved by a majority of the votes present at a meeting of which a quorum is present shall constitute the acts of the members, except when approval by a greater number of members is required by the Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or the Condominium Act.

2.5 Voting.

(a) In any meeting of members, the Owners of Units shall be entitled to cast one vote for each Unit owned.

(b) If a Unit is owned by one person, that person's right to vote shall be established by the record title to the Unit. If any Unit is owned by more than one person, or is under lease, the person entitled to cast one vote for the Unit shall be designated by a certificate signed by all of the record Owners of the Unit and filed with the Secretary of the Association. If a Unit is owned by a corporation, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Unit shall be designated by a certificate signed by the President or duly authorized officer and filed with the Secretary of the Association. Such certificates shall be valid until revoked or until superseded by a subsequent certificate or until a change in the ownership of the Unit concerned. If such certificate is not on file, the vote of such Owner shall not be considered in determining the requirement for a quorum nor for any other purpose.

2.6 Proxies. Votes may be cast in person or by proxy as defined and limited by F.S. 718.112 (2)(b). A proxy may be made by any person entitled to vote and shall be effective only for the specific meeting for which originally given and any lawfully adjourned meeting thereof and in no event shall any proxy be valid for a period longer than ninety (90) days after the date of the first meeting for which it was given. The proxy shall be revocable at any time at the pleasure of the Unit Owner executing it, and must be filed with the Secretary before the appointed time of the meeting or any adjournment of the meeting.

2.7 Adjourned meetings. If any meeting of the members cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended, the members who are present, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present.

2.8 The order of business at annual members' meetings, and as far as practical at other members' meetings, shall be:

- (a) Collection of ballots not yet cast, as applicable.
- (b) Calling of the roll and certifying of proxies.
- (c) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice.
- (e) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes.
- (e) Reports of Committees.
- (f) Appointment of inspectors of election.
- (g) Election of directors.
- (h) Determination of less than adequate reserves or no reserves.
- (i) Unfinished business.
- (j) New business.
- (k) Adjournment.

### 3. DIRECTORS

The affairs of the Association shall be determined by a Board of Directors who need not be members of the Association. The first Board of Directors shall consist of three (3) directors who need not be members of the Association. The Board of Directors may from time to time increase or decrease the number of persons to serve on the Board, provided, however, that the Board must always consist of an odd number of members, and provided, further, that there shall never be less than three (3) Directors on the Board. The Board shall remain at three (3) Directors until such time as the Developer transfers control of the Association to Unit Owners other than the Developer, at which time the Board shall consist of not less than five (5) members, who shall be Members of the Association. Any increase or decrease in the number of members on the Board shall be effectuated at least thirty (30) days prior to a regular annual election of the Board, and such change in number shall be effective as of the date of the next regular election. The term of the first Board of Directors or their replacements, shall continue until the Developer voluntarily relinquishes control of the Association, or relinquishes control as required by Florida Statute §718.301(1)(a)-(e) as follows:

(1) When unit owners other than the developer own 15 percent or more of the units in a condominium that will be operated ultimately by an association, the unit owners other than the developer shall be entitled to elect no less than one-third of the members of the board of administration of the association. Unit owners other than the developer are entitled to elect not less than a majority of the members of the board of administration of an association:

(a) Three years after 50 percent of the units that will be operated ultimately by the association have been conveyed to purchasers;

(b) Three months after 90 percent of the units that will be operated ultimately by the association have been conveyed to purchasers;

(c) When all the units that will be operated ultimately by the association have been completed, some of them have been conveyed to purchasers, and none of the others are being offered for sale by the developer in the ordinary course of business;

(d) When some of the units have been conveyed to purchasers and none of the other are being constructed or offered for sale by the developer in the ordinary course of business; or

(e) Seven years after recordation of the declaration of condominium; or, in the case of an association which may ultimately operate more than one condominium, 7 years after recordation of the declaration for the first condominium it operates; or, in the case of an association operating a phase condominium created pursuant to s. 718.403, 7 years after recordation of the declaration creating the initial phase, whichever occurs first. The developer is entitled to elect at least one member of the board of administration of an association as long as the developer holds for sale in the ordinary course of business at least 5 percent, in condominiums with fewer than 500 units, and 2 percent, in condominiums with more than 500 units, of the units in a condominium operated by the association. Following the time the developer relinquishes control of the association, the developer may exercise the right to vote any developer-owned units in the same manner as any other unit owner except for purposes of reacquiring control of the association or selecting the majority member of the board of administration.

3.1 Election of Directors shall be conducted in the following manner:

(a) Election of Directors shall be held at the annual members' meeting, with the first election being at the first member meeting required to be called pursuant to Florida Statute 718.301 to elect a Board member, or members, to provide for the percentage of Unit Owners other than the Developer on the Board of Directors as required by Florida Statute 718.301. Said election of Unit Owners other than the Developer shall take place in accordance with the procedures as set forth in F.S. 718 and the Florida Administration Code, as amended. Election of Directors thereafter shall be at each year's annual meeting.

(b) Except as to vacancies created by removal of directors by members, vacancies in the Board of Directors occurring between annual meetings of members shall be filled by the remaining directors.

(c) Subsequent to delivery of control of the Board to the Unit Owners other than the Developer, pursuant to Florida Statute 718.301, any member of the board of administration may be recalled and removed from office with or without cause,

by the vote or agreement in writing by a majority of the voting interests. A special meeting of the Unit Owners to recall a member or members of the board of administration may be called by ten percent (10%) of the voting interests giving notice of the meeting as required for a meeting of Unit Owners, and the notice shall state the purpose of the meeting. Recall shall operate in accordance with Florida Statute 718.112(2)(j).

(d) Provided, however, that until the Developer has relinquished control of the Association, the first directors of the Association shall serve, and in the event of vacancies, the remaining directors shall fill the vacancies, and if there are no remaining directors, the vacancies shall be filled by the Developer. This provision shall not be interpreted or be construed so as to preclude annual meetings of the membership.

3.2 The term of each director's service, subject to the provisions of 3.1(d) above, shall be as follows: The first Board elected subsequent to the transfer of control to the Unit Owners shall elect two (2) Board members for two years and the remaining Board members for one year. At the end of the initial term, they shall thereafter be elected for one year terms, thereby staggering the Board members.

3.3 The organization meeting of a newly-elected Board of Directors shall be held within ten (10) days of their election at such place and time as shall be fixed by the Directors at the meeting at which they were elected, and a notice of such meeting shall be posted conspicuously on the condominium property at least forty-eight (48) continuous hours preceding the meeting.

3.4 Regular meeting of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the directors. Notice of regular meetings shall be given to each director, personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, at least forty-eight (48) continuous hours prior to the day named for such meeting. Notice to members of Directors meetings shall be given by posting such notice in a conspicuous place forty-eight (48) continuous hours in advance of said meeting. Said meeting shall be open to all Unit Owners.

3.5 Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President and must be called by the Secretary at the written request of one-third of the Directors. Not less than forty-eight (48) hours' notice of the meeting shall be given personally, by mail or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting. Notice to members of Directors meetings shall be given by posting such notice in a conspicuous place forty-eight (48) continuous hours in advance of said meeting. Said meeting shall be open to all Unit Owners.

3.6 Waiver of Notice. Any director may waive notice of a meeting before or after the meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice.

3.7 A quorum at directors' meetings shall consist of a majority of the entire Board of Directors. The acts approved by a majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the acts of the Board of Directors, except when approval by a greater number of directors is required by the Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

3.8 Adjourned meeting. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors there be less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time.

3.9 Joinder and meeting by approval of minutes. The joinder of a director in the action of a meeting by signing and concurring in the minutes of that meeting shall constitute the presence of such director and his agreement or disagreement with the actions taken. This agreement or disagreement may not be used as a vote for or against the action taken and may not be used for the purposes of creating a quorum.

3.10 The presiding officer of Directors' meetings shall be the Chairman of the Board if such an officer has been elected; and if none, the President shall preside. In the absence of the presiding officer, the directors present shall designate one of their number to preside.

3.11 The order of business at directors' meetings shall be:

- (a) Calling of roll
- (b) Proof of due notice of meeting
- (c) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes
- (d) Reports of officers and committees
- (e) Election of officers
- (f) Unfinished business
- (g) New business
- (h) Adjournment

3.12 A Director shall not be entitled to, nor paid any fee for his services as a Director.

3.13 A Director shall be considered as present for a regular or special meeting if he is in simultaneous communication by telephone with all other Directors. A telephone speaker must be used so that the conversation of the Director attending by telephone may be heard by the Board members attending in person, as well as any Unit Owners present at a meeting.

#### 4. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4.1 All of the powers and duties of the Association existing under the Condominium Act, Declaration of Condominium, Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, shall be exercised exclusively by the Board of Directors, subject only to the

approval by Unit Owners where such approval is specifically required. Without limiting the powers and duties of the Board of Directors, it shall have the following express powers, in addition to all others herein granted, and provided for by the Declaration of Condominium and the Condominium Act, to wit:

(a) To enter into a long-term management contract, providing for the management of the condominium property and of the recreation area, if any.

(b) To enter into contracts for the purpose of making available to the Owners and residents of the Units such services as, but not limited to, doorman and automobile parking; maid service, security and security alarm system, contracts for maintenance, repair, replacement of common elements and the like, provided, however, that the term of period of such contracts shall not exceed three (3) years, and provided, further, that said contracts may provide for additional extensions of the original term in the absence of written notice of termination by either party.

(c) To charge, assess and collect fees, charges, assessments, including reserves for the Condominium, not less frequently than quarterly, and to enforce the collection according to the Declaration of Condominium and the exhibits and as allowed by law. To lease, maintain, repair and replace the common elements.

(d) To purchase or lease real and personal property in the Association's name.

(e) The Directors shall keep minutes of all meetings of the Unit Owners and the Board of Directors, and said minutes, together with current copies of the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, books, records and audited financial statements shall be kept in a book available for inspection by Unit Owners, or their authorized representatives, any holder, insurer or guarantor of any first mortgage that is secured by a Unit, any prospective purchaser of a Unit, or any agency or corporation which has an interest or prospective interest in the Condominium, and Board members at any reasonable time. All accounting records and all minutes shall be retained for a period of time not less than seven years.

(f) To create and promulgate reasonable rules and regulations for the operation of the Condominium.

(g) To adopt a budget for the Association. Except notice of the meeting for adoption of the budget and a copy of the budget shall be mailed to all members at least fourteen (14) days prior to the Board meeting.

4.2 The Association has the irrevocable right of access to each unit, during reasonable hours, when necessary for the maintenance, repair, or replacement of any common elements or of any portion of a unit to be maintained by the Association

pursuant to the Declaration or as necessary to prevent damage to the common elements or to a unit or units.

## 5. OFFICERS

5.1 The officers of the Association shall be a President, who shall be a Director, Secretary and a Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors, and such other officers as the Board of Directors may, from time to time, designate.

Any officer may be removed peremptorily, without cause, by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the directors present at any duly constituted meeting.

5.2 The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He shall have all of the powers and duties usually vested in the office of president of an association, including, but not limited to, the power to appoint committees from among the members from time to time, as he, in his discretion, may determine appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association.

5.3 The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all proceedings of the directors and the members meetings; shall tend to the giving and serving of all notices to the members and directors and other notices required by law; shall have custody of the seal and affix it to instruments requiring a seal when duly signed; shall keep the records of the Association, and shall perform all duties incident to the office and as may be required by the directors or the President.

5.4 The Treasurer shall have custody of all property of the Association, including funds, securities and evidences of indebtedness; shall keep the books of the Association in accordance with good accounting practices; and shall perform all other duties incident to the office.

5.5 No compensation shall be paid to any officer of the Association. No officer who is a designee of the Developer shall receive any compensation for his services as an officer.

## 6. FISCAL MANAGEMENT

The provisions for fiscal management of the Association set forth in the Declaration of Condominium, Articles of Incorporation of the Association, and the Condominium Acts shall be supplemented by the following provisions.

6.1 Accounts. The receipts and expenditures of the Association shall be credited and charged to accounts under the following classifications as shall be appropriate, all of which expenditures shall be common expenses:



(a) Current expenses, which shall include all receipts and expenditures within the year for which the budget is made, including, if applicable, but not limited to those expenses listed in F.S. 718.504(21), including a reasonable allowance for contingencies and working funds, except expenditures chargeable to reserves, to additional improvements or to operations. The balance in this fund at the end of each year shall be applied to reduce the assessments for operating expenses for the succeeding year, or may be distributed to the membership, as the Directors shall determine.

(b) Reserve accounts for capital expenditures and deferred maintenance. Each of these accounts shall include, but not be limited to roof replacement, building painting, and pavement resurfacing. The establishment and funding of these reserve accounts shall be subject to the conditions and exceptions set forth in F.S. 718.112(2)(f).

(c) Operations, which shall include gross revenues from the use of Common Elements and from other sources. Only the additional direct expense required by any revenue producing operation will be charged to this account, and any surplus from any operation shall be used to reduce the assessments for current expense for the year during which the surplus is realized.

6.2 Budget. The Board of Directors shall adopt a Budget for each fiscal year that shall include the estimated funds required to defray the common expense and to provide and maintain funds for reserves. The form of the annual budget shall be in conformance with Chapter 718.112 and 718.504(21) of the Florida Statutes. A copy of the Budget shall be delivered by mail or hand delivery at the address of the Unit Owner existing on the books of the Association not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting of the unit owners or the Board of Directors at which it is to be considered, together with a notice of that meeting. If an adopted budget requires assessment against the Unit Owners in any fiscal or calendar year exceeding 115% of the assessments for the preceding year, the Board, upon written application of 10% of the Unit Owners to the Board, shall call a special meeting of the Unit Owners within thirty days, upon not less than 10 days written notice to each Unit Owner. At the special meeting, the Unit Owners shall consider and enact a budget. The adoption of the budget requires a vote of not less than a majority of the vote of all Unit Owners. The budget shall be considered adopted if approved by a majority of the Unit Owners at the meeting or in writing. If a meeting of the Unit Owners has been called and a quorum is not attained or a substitute budget is not adopted by the Unit Owners, then the budget adopted by the Board of Directors goes into effect. In determining whether assessments exceed 115% of similar assessments in prior years, any authorized provisions for reasonable reserves for repair or replacement of the Condominium property, anticipated expenses by the Condominium Association which are not anticipated to be incurred on a regular annual basis, or assessments for betterments to the Condominium property must be excluded from the computation. However, as long as the Developer is in control of the Board of Administration, the Board may not impose

an assessment for any year greater than 115% of the prior fiscal or calendar year's assessment without approval of the majority of all of the Unit Owners.

6.3 Assessments. Assessments against the Unit Owners for their share of the items of the budget shall be made for the fiscal year annually, in advance, 30 days preceding the fiscal year for which the assessments are made. Such assessments shall be due and payable as determined by the Board of Directors, but not less frequently than quarterly. If an annual assessment is not made as required, an assessment shall be presumed to have been made in the amount of the last prior assessment, and payments on such assessment shall be due and payable in the same manner as the prior assessment. In the event the annual assessment proves to be insufficient, the budget and assessments may be amended at any time by the Board of Directors. Unpaid assessments for the remaining portion of the fiscal year for which an amended assessment is made shall be payable as determined by the Board of Directors. Provided, nothing herein shall serve to prohibit or prevent the Board of Directors from imposing a lump sum assessment in case of any immediate need or emergency.

6.4 Acceleration of Assessment installments upon default. If a Unit Owner shall be in default in the payment of an assessment, the Board of Directors may file a claim of lien in the Public Records of Orange County for such delinquent amount and for the assessments due for the remainder of the budget year in which the claim of lien is filed. Upon filing of the claim of lien, the Board of Directors may accelerate the remaining balance of the assessment upon notice to the Unit Owner, and the unpaid balance of the assessments shall be due and payable the date the claim of lien is filed.

6.5 The depository of the Association shall be such bank or savings and loan association as shall be designated from time to time by the directors and in which the monies of the Association shall be deposited. Withdrawal of monies from such accounts shall be only by such persons as are authorized by the directors, provided that a Management Agreement may include in its provisions authority in a designated agent to sign checks on behalf of the Association for payment of the obligations of the Association.

6.6 Fidelity bonds shall be required by the Board of Directors for all persons including officers and Directors controlling or disbursing funds of the Association in accordance with Florida Statute 718.111(11)(d). The premiums on such bonds shall be paid by the Association.

6.7 Financial Reports. Within 90 days after the end of the fiscal year of the Association, the Association shall prepare and complete, or cause to be prepared and completed by a third party, a financial report for the preceding fiscal year. Financial reports shall be prepared as required by rules adopted by the Division of Florida Land Sales, Condominiums and Mobile Homes ("Division"). Within 21 days after the financial report is completed or received by the Association from the third party, the Association

shall mail to each Unit Owner at the address last furnished to the Association by the Unit Owner, or hand deliver to each Unit Owner, a copy of the financial report, or a notice that a copy of the financial report will be mailed or hand delivered to the Unit Owner, without charge, upon receipt of a written request from the Unit Owner. If the Division requires that the financial statements be compiled, reviewed, or audited, such requirements may be reduced when a majority of the voting interests of the Association present at a duly called meeting of the Association have determined for a fiscal year to reduce such requirements. In an Association in which turnover of control by the Developer has not occurred, all Unit Owners, including the Developer, may vote on issues related to the preparation of financial reports for the first 2 years of the operation of the Association, after which time votes on such issues shall be by a majority of voting interests other than the Developer. The meeting shall be held prior to the end of the fiscal year, and the votes shall be effective for only the fiscal year in which the vote is taken.

#### 7. PARLIAMENTARY RULES

Roberts' Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of the Association meetings when not in conflict with the Declaration of Condominium, Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws.

#### 8. AMENDMENTS

A resolution for the adoption of a proposed amendment of these Bylaws may be proposed by either the Board of Directors of the Association or by the members of the Association. Members may propose such an amendment by instrument in writing directed to the President or Secretary of the Board signed by not less than twenty percent (20%) of the membership. Amendments may be proposed by the Board of Directors by action of a majority of the Board at any regularly constituted meeting thereof. Upon an amendment being proposed as herein provided for, the President or, in the event of his refusal or failure to act, the Board of Directors, shall call a meeting of the membership to be held within sixty (60) days for the purpose of considering said amendment. Directors and members not present in person or by proxy at the meeting considering the amendment may express their approval in writing, providing such approval is delivered to the Secretary at or prior to the meeting. Except as elsewhere provided, such approvals must be either by:

(a) Not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) of the entire membership of the Board of Directors and by not less than sixty-six and two thirds percent (66 2/3%) of the votes of the entire membership of the Association; or

(b) Not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) of the votes of the entire membership of the Association.

8.1 Proviso. Provided, however, that no amendment shall discriminate against any condominium Unit Owner nor against any Condominium Unit or class or group of Units unless the Condominium Unit Owners so affected shall consent. No amendment shall be made that is in conflict with the Articles of Incorporation or the Declaration of Condominium. Each amendment shall, on the first page, identify the book and page of the Public Records where the declaration of each condominium operated by the Association is recorded.

8.2 Execution and Recording. A copy of each amendment shall be attached to a certificate certifying that the amendment was duly adopted as an amendment of the Declaration and Bylaws, which certificate shall be executed by The President or duly qualified officer of the Association with the formalities of a deed. The amendment shall be effective when such certificate shall be annexed to and recorded with an amendment to the Declaration of Condominium where the Condominium is located.

8.3 No Bylaws shall be revised or amended by reference to its title or number only. Proposals to amend existing Bylaws shall contain the full text of the Bylaws to be amended; new words shall be inserted in the text underlined, and words to be deleted shall be lined through with hyphens. Non-material errors or omissions in the Bylaw process shall not invalidate and otherwise properly promulgate an amendment. Extensive changes to the By-Laws may be changed in accordance with Florida Statute 718.112(2)(h)2.

## 9. STATUTORY INCLUSIONS

9.1 If the transfer, lease, sale, or sublease of a Unit by its owner is subject to notice to the Condominium Association or any body thereof, a preset fee not to exceed the amount permitted by Florida Statute 718 may be charged by the Association in connection with any such transfer, sale, lease, or sublease to cover the Association's expenditures and services.

9.2 Notice of any meeting where assessments against Unit Owners are to be considered for any reason shall specifically contain a statement that assessments will be considered and the nature of any such assessments.

9.3 Mandatory non-binding arbitration. In the event of internal disputes arising from the operation of the condominium among Unit Owners, Associations, and their agents and assigns, the parties shall elect to resolve such disputes by submitting to mandatory non-binding arbitration in accordance with Florida Statutes 718.1255. If the parties agree to so submit, they shall make such election in writing filed with the Secretary of the Association.

9.4. Compliance with Fire and Safety Code. A certificate of compliance from a licensed electrical contractor or electrician may be accepted by the Association's Board

of Directors as evidence of compliance of the Units to the applicable fire and life safety code.

#### 10. FINES - LEVY AND FORECLOSURE

10.1 The Board of Directors of the Association shall have the power and authority to levy and collect fines in accordance with the Declaration of Condominium, Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws and Rules and Regulation periodically created from time to time by the Board of Directors and/or the Association for the operation and management of the Condominium property. No fine may become a lien against a Unit and no fine may exceed \$100.00 per violation. A fine may be levied on the basis of each day of a continuing violation, provided that no such fine shall in the aggregate exceed \$1,000.00.

10.2 In the event a fine is to be levied, the following procedure shall be followed:

(a) The party against whom the fine is sought to be levied shall be afforded an opportunity for hearing before a committee of other Unit Owners after reasonable notice of not less than 14 days, and said notice shall include:

- (1) A statement of the date, time and place of the hearing;
- (2) A statement of the provisions of the Declaration, Association Bylaws, or Association rules which have allegedly been violated; and
- (3) A short and plain statement of the matters asserted by the Association.

(b) The party against whom the fine may be levied shall have an opportunity to respond, to present evidence, and to provide written and oral argument on all issues involved and shall have an opportunity at the hearing to review, challenge and respond to any material considered by the Association.

(c) The hearing shall be conducted before a committee of other Unit Owners.

(d) Subsequent to the hearing and any continuance thereof, but, nevertheless not later than 10 days following the adjournment of the hearing, the Board of Directors, with the concurrence of the committee, shall make a final decision as to the levying and assessment of the fine. If the committee does not agree with the fine, the fine may not be levied. Such decision shall be delivered to the party against whom the fine is sought to be levied by notice in writing at the last known address of the party.

S:\JayZ\Clients\Pulte\STONEBRIDGE LAKES\Bylaws.DOC



SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT  
ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE  
STANDARD GENERAL PERMIT NO. 48-00265-S-31

DATE ISSUED: June 2, 2003

Form #0941  
02/95

PERMITTEE: PULTE HOME CORPORATION  
VENICE LLC  
QUARTERPATH LLC

( See attached for Permittee addresses )

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Modification for construction and operation of a surface water management system to serve a 48.35 acre residential project known as Stonebridge Lakes.

PROJECT LOCATION: ORANGE COUNTY, SEC 1,12 TWP 23S RGE 28E

PERMIT DURATION: See Special Condition No:1. See attached Rule 40E-4.321, Florida Administrative Code.

This is to notify you of the District's agency action concerning Notice of Intent for Permit Application No. 030123-12, dated January 23, 2003. This action is taken pursuant to Rule 40E-1.603 and Chapter 40E-40, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).

Based on the information provided, District rules have been adhered to and an Environmental Resource General Permit is in effect for this project subject to:

1. Not receiving a filed request for a Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, administrative hearing.
2. the attached 19 General Conditions (See Pages : 2 - 4 of 7 ),
3. the attached 17 Special Conditions (See Pages : 5 - 7 of 7 ) and
4. the attached 11 Exhibit(s).

Should you object to these conditions, please refer to the attached "Notice of Rights" which addresses the procedures to be followed if you desire a public hearing or other review of the proposed agency action. Please contact this office if you have any questions concerning this matter. If we do not hear from you in accordance with the "Notice of Rights," we will assume that you concur with the District's action.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a "Notice of Rights" has been mailed to the Permittee (and the persons listed in the attached distribution list) no later than 5:00 p.m. on this 2nd day of June, 2003, in accordance with Section 120.60(3), Florida Statutes.

BY: Thomas P. Genovese  
Thomas P. Genovese  
Service Center Director  
Orlando Service Center

Certified mail number 7002 1000 0005 6695 3257;3240;2594 1127

EXHIBIT "E"

PERMITTEE ADDRESSES :

Pulte Home Corporation  
555 Winderley Place Suite 420  
Maitland FL 32751

Venice Llc  
C/O Southstar Development Partners, Inc  
255 Alhambar Circle, Suite 325  
Coral Gables FL 33134  
Quarterpath Llc  
C/O Southstar Development Partners, Inc  
255 Alhambar Circle, Suite 325  
Coral Gables FL 33134

## ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE PERMIT

## CHAPTER 40E-4 (10/95)

## 40E-4.321 Duration of Permits

(1) Unless revoked or otherwise modified the duration of an environmental resource permit issued under this chapter or Chapter 40E-40, F.A.C. is as follows:

(a) For a conceptual approval, two years from the date of issuance or the date specified as a condition of the permit, unless within that period an application for an individual or standard general permit is filed for any portion of the project. If an application for an environmental resource permit is filed, then the conceptual approval remains valid until final action is taken on the environmental resource permit application. If the application is granted, then the conceptual approval is valid for an additional two years from the date of issuance of the permit. Conceptual approvals which have no individual or standard general environmental resource permit applications filed for a period of two years shall expire automatically at the end of the two year period.

(b) For a conceptual approval filed concurrently with a development of regional impact (DRI) application for development approval (ADA) and a local government comprehensive plan amendment, the duration of the conceptual approval shall be two years from whichever one of the following occurs at the latest date:

1. the effective date of the local government's comprehensive plan amendment.
2. the effective date of the local government development order.
3. the date on which the District issues the conceptual approval, or
4. the latest date of the resolution of any Chapter 120.57, F.A.C., administrative proceeding or other legal appeals.

(c) For an individual or standard general environmental resource permit, five years from the date of issuance or such amount of time as made a condition of the permit.

(d) For a noticed general permit issued pursuant to Chapter 40E-400, F.A.C., five years from the date the notice of intent to use the permit is provided to the District.

(2)(a) Unless prescribed by special permit condition, permits expire automatically according to the timeframes indicated in this rule. If application for extension is made in writing pursuant to subsection (3), the permit shall remain in full force and effect until:

1. the Governing Board takes action on an application for extension of an individual permit, or
2. staff takes action on an application for extension of a standard general permit.

(b) Installation of the project outfall structure shall not constitute a vesting of the permit.

(3) The permit extension shall be issued provided that a permittee files a written request with the District showing good cause prior to the expiration of the permit. For the purpose of this rule, good cause shall mean a set of extenuating circumstances outside of the control of the permittee. Requests for extensions, which shall include documentation of the extenuating circumstances and how they have delayed this project, will not be accepted more than 180 days prior to the expiration date.

(4) Substantial modifications to Conceptual Approvals will extend the duration of the Conceptual Approval for two years from the date of issuance of the modification. For the purposes of this section, the term "substantial modification" shall mean a modification which is reasonably expected to lead to substantially different water resource or environmental impacts which require a detailed review.

(5) Substantial modifications to individual or standard general environmental resource permits issued pursuant to a permit application extend the duration of the permit for three years from the date of issuance of the modification. Individual or standard general environmental resource permit modifications do not extend the duration of a conceptual approval.

(6) Permit modifications issued pursuant to subsection 40E-4.331(2)(b), F.A.C. (letter modifications) do not extend the duration of a permit.

(7) Failure to complete construction or alteration of the surface water management system and obtain operation phase approval from the District within the permit duration shall require a new permit authorization in order to continue construction unless a permit extension is granted.

Specific authority 373.044, 373.113 F.S. Law Implemented 373.413, 373.416, 373.419, 373.426 F.S. History—New 9-3-81, Amended 1-31-82, 12-1-82, Formerly 16K-4.07(4), Amended 7-1-86, 4/20/94, 10-3-95



**GENERAL CONDITIONS**

1. All activities authorized by this permit shall be implemented as set forth in the plans, specifications and performance criteria as approved by this permit. Any deviation from the permitted activity and the conditions for undertaking that activity shall constitute a violation of this permit and Part IV, Chapter 373, F.S.
2. This permit or a copy thereof, complete with all conditions, attachments, exhibits, and modifications shall be kept at the work site of the permitted activity. The complete permit shall be available for review at the work site upon request by District staff. The permittee shall require the contractor to review the complete permit prior to commencement of the activity authorized by this permit.
3. Activities approved by this permit shall be conducted in a manner which does not cause violations of State water quality standards. The permittee shall implement best management practices for erosion and pollution control to prevent violation of State water quality standards. Temporary erosion control shall be implemented prior to and during construction, and permanent control measures shall be completed within 7 days of any construction activity. Turbidity barriers shall be installed and maintained at all locations where the possibility of transferring suspended solids into the receiving waterbody exists due to the permitted work. Turbidity barriers shall remain in place at all locations until construction is completed and soils are stabilized and vegetation has been established. All practices shall be in accordance with the guidelines and specifications described in Chapter 6 of the Florida Land Development Manual; A Guide to Sound Land and Water Management (Department of Environmental Regulation, 1988), incorporated by reference in Rule 40E-4.091, F.A.C. unless a project-specific erosion and sediment control plan is approved as part of the permit. Thereafter the permittee shall be responsible for the removal of the barriers. The permittee shall correct any erosion or shoaling that causes adverse impacts to the water resources.
4. The permittee shall notify the District of the anticipated construction start date within 30 days of the date that this permit is issued. At least 48 hours prior to commencement of activity authorized by this permit, the permittee shall submit to the District an Environmental Resource Permit Construction Commencement Notice Form Number 0960 indicating the actual start date and the expected construction completion date.
5. When the duration of construction will exceed one year, the permittee shall submit construction status reports to the District on an annual basis utilizing an annual status report form. Status report forms shall be submitted the following June of each year.
6. Within 30 days after completion of construction of the permitted activity, the permittee shall submit a written statement of completion and certification by a registered professional engineer or other appropriate individual as authorized by law, utilizing the supplied Environmental Resource Permit Construction Completion/Certification Form Number 0881. The statement of completion and certification shall be based on onsite observation of construction or review of as-built drawings for the purpose of determining if the work was completed in compliance with permitted plans and specifications. This submittal shall serve to notify the District that the system is ready for inspection. Additionally, if deviation from the approved drawings is discovered during the certification process, the certification must be accompanied by a copy of the approved permit drawings with deviations noted. Both the original and revised specifications must be clearly shown. The plans must be clearly labeled as "As-built" or "Record" drawing. All surveyed dimensions and elevations shall be certified by a registered surveyor.
7. The operation phase of this permit shall not become effective: until the permittee has complied with the requirements of condition (6) above, and submitted a request for conversion of Environmental Resource Permit from Construction Phase to Operation Phase, Form No. 0920; the District determines the system to be in compliance with the permitted plans and specifications; and the entity approved by the District in accordance with Sections 9.0 and 10.0 of the Basis of Review for Environmental Resource Permit Applications within the South Florida Water Management District, accepts responsibility for operation and maintenance of the system. The permit shall not be transferred to such approved operation and maintenance entity until the operation phase of the permit becomes effective. Following inspection and approval of the permitted system by the District, the permittee shall initiate transfer of the permit to the

## GENERAL CONDITIONS

approved responsible operating entity if different from the permittee. Until the permit is transferred pursuant to Section 40E-1.6107, F.A.C., the permittee shall be liable for compliance with the terms of the permit.

8. Each phase or independent portion of the permitted system must be completed in accordance with the permitted plans and permit conditions prior to the initiation of the permitted use of site infrastructure located within the area served by that portion or phase of the system. Each phase or independent portion of the system must be completed in accordance with the permitted plans and permit conditions prior to transfer of responsibility for operation and maintenance of the phase or portion of the system to a local government or other responsible entity.
9. For those systems that will be operated or maintained by an entity that will require an easement or deed restriction in order to enable that entity to operate or maintain the system in conformance with this permit, such easement or deed restriction must be recorded in the public records and submitted to the District along with any other final operation and maintenance documents required by Sections 9.0 and 10.0 of the Basis of Review for Environmental Resource Permit applications within the South Florida Water Management District, prior to lot or units sales or prior to the completion of the system, whichever comes first. Other documents concerning the establishment and authority of the operating entity must be filed with the Secretary of State, county or municipal entities. Final operation and maintenance documents must be received by the District when maintenance and operation of the system is accepted by the local government entity. Failure to submit the appropriate final documents will result in the permittee remaining liable for carrying out maintenance and operation of the permitted system and any other permit conditions.
10. Should any other regulatory agency require changes to the permitted system, the permittee shall notify the District in writing of the changes prior to implementation so that a determination can be made whether a permit modification is required.
11. This permit does not eliminate the necessity to obtain any required federal, state, local and special district authorizations prior to the start of any activity approved by this permit. This permit does not convey to the permittee or create in the permittee any property right, or any interest in real property, nor does it authorize any entrance upon or activities on property which is not owned or controlled by the permittee, or convey any rights or privileges other than those specified in the permit and Chapter 40E-4 or Chapter 40E-40, F.A.C..
12. The permittee is hereby advised that Section 253.77, F.S. states that a person may not commence any excavation, construction, or other activity involving the use of sovereign or other lands of the State, the title to which is vested in the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund without obtaining the required lease, license, easement, or other form of consent authorizing the proposed use. Therefore, the permittee is responsible for obtaining any necessary authorizations from the Board of Trustees prior to commencing activity on sovereignty lands or other state-owned lands.
13. The permittee must obtain a Water Use permit prior to construction dewatering, unless the work qualifies for a general permit pursuant to Subsection 40E-20.302(4), F.A.C., also known as the "No Notice" Rule.
14. The permittee shall hold and save the District harmless from any and all damages, claims, or liabilities which may arise by reason of the construction, alteration, operation, maintenance, removal, abandonment or use of any system authorized by the permit.
15. Any delineation of the extent of a wetland or other surface water submitted as part of the permit application, including plans or other supporting documentation, shall not be considered binding, unless a specific condition of this permit or a formal determination under Section 373.421(2), F.S., provides otherwise.
16. The permittee shall notify the District in writing within 30 days of any sale, conveyance, or other transfer of ownership or control of a permitted system or the real property on which the permitted system is located. All transfers of ownership or transfers of a permit are subject to the requirements of Rules 40E-1.6105 and

**GENERAL CONDITIONS**

40E-1.6107, F.A.C.. The permittee transferring the permit shall remain liable for corrective actions that may be required as a result of any violations prior to the sale, conveyance or other transfer of the system.

17. Upon reasonable notice to the permittee, District authorized staff with proper identification shall have permission to enter, inspect, sample and test the system to insure conformity with the plans and specifications approved by the permit.
18. If historical or archaeological artifacts are discovered at any time on the project site, the permittee shall immediately notify the appropriate District service center.
19. The permittee shall immediately notify the District in writing of any previously submitted information that is later discovered to be inaccurate.

## SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. The conceptual phase of this permit shall expire on June 2, 2005.  
The construction phase of this permit shall expire on June 2, 2008.
2. Operation of the surface water management system shall be the responsibility of STONEBRIDGE LAKES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION. Within one year of permit issuance or concurrent with the engineering certification of construction completion, whichever comes first, the permittee shall submit a copy of the recorded deed restrictions (or declaration of condominium, if applicable), a copy of the recorded deed restrictions, (or declaration of condominium, if applicable), a copy of the filed articles of incorporation, and a copy of the certificate of incorporation for the association.
3. Discharge Facilities:

Basin: SMA R-1, Structure: 1

2-12" WIDE SHARP CRESTED weirs with crest at elev. 96.8' NGVD.  
50 LF of 24" dia. REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE culvert.

Receiving body : Existing wetlands

Control elev : 95 feet NGVD. /95 FEET NGVD DRY SEASON.  
Basin: SMA R-1, Structure: 1

1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 95' NGVD.

Receiving body : Existing wetlands

Control elev : 95 feet NGVD. /95 FEET NGVD DRY SEASON.  
Basin: SMA R-2, Structure: 1

250 LF of 36" dia. REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE culvert.  
1-36" W X 54" L drop inlet with crest at elev. 94' NGVD.

Receiving body : Existing wetland

Control elev : 93 feet NGVD. /93 FEET NGVD DRY SEASON.  
Basin: SMA R-2, Structure: 1

1-6.25" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 93' NGVD.

Receiving body : Existing wetland

Control elev : 93 feet NGVD. /93 FEET NGVD DRY SEASON.  
Basin: SMA R-4, Structure: 1

104 LF of 18" dia. REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE culvert.  
1-24" W X 37" L drop inlet with crest at elev. 94.8' NGVD.

Receiving body : Existing wetland

Control elev : 93 feet NGVD. /93 FEET NGVD DRY SEASON.  
Basin: SMA R-4, Structure: 1

1-3" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 93' NGVD.

**SPECIAL CONDITIONS**

Receiving body : Existing wetland

Control elev : 93 feet NGVD. /93 FEET NGVD DRY SEASON.  
Basin: SMA T-1, Structure: 1

1-6" W X 26.4" H RECTANGULAR NOTCH weir with crest at elev. 99' NGVD.  
541 LF of 30" dia. REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE culvert.

Receiving body : Existing wetland

Control elev : 97.5 feet NGVD. /97.5 FEET NGVD DRY SEASON.  
Basin: SMA T-1, Structure: 1

1-4" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with invert at elev. 97.5' NGVD.

Receiving body : Existing wetland

Control elev : 97.5 feet NGVD. /97.5 FEET NGVD DRY SEASON.  
Basin: SMA T-2, Structure: 1

2-20" W X 18" H RECTANGULAR NOTCH weirs with crest at elev. 95.2' NGVD.  
81 LF of 42" dia. REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE culvert.

Receiving body : Existing wetland

Control elev : 93 feet NGVD. /93 FEET NGVD DRY SEASON.  
Basin: SMA T-2, Structure: 1

1-5.25" dia. CIRCULAR ORIFICE with Invert at elev. 93' NGVD.

Receiving body : Existing wetland

Control elev : 93 feet NGVD. /93 FEET NGVD DRY SEASON.

4. The permittee shall be responsible for the correction of any erosion, shoaling or water quality problems that result from the construction or operation of the surface water management system.
5. Measures shall be taken during construction to insure that sedimentation and/or turbidity violations do not occur in the receiving water.
6. Lake side slopes shall be no steeper than 5:1 (horizontal:vertical) to a depth of two feet below the control elevation. Side slopes shall be nurtured or planted from 2 feet below to 1 foot above control elevation to insure vegetative growth, unless shown on the plans.
7. Facilities other than those stated herein shall not be constructed without an approved modification of this permit.
8. A stable, permanent and accessible elevation reference shall be established on or within one hundred (100) feet of all permitted discharge structures no later than the submission of the certification report. The location of the elevation reference must be noted on or with the certification report.
9. The permittee shall provide routine maintenance of all of the components of the surface water management system in order to remove all trapped sediments/debris. All materials shall be properly disposed of as required by law. Failure to properly maintain the system may result in adverse flooding

**SPECIAL CONDITIONS**

conditions.

10. Minimum building floor elevation: BASIN: SMA R-1 - 100.50 feet NGVD.  
BASIN: SMA R-2 - 100.50 feet NGVD.  
BASIN: SMA R-4 - 100.50 feet NGVD.  
BASIN: SMA T-1 - 102.80 feet NGVD.  
BASIN: SMA T-2 - 100.50 feet NGVD.
11. Minimum road crown elevation: Basin: SMA R-1 - 98.24 feet NGVD.  
Basin: SMA R-2 - 98.24 feet NGVD.  
Basin: SMA T-1 - 101.30 feet NGVD.  
Basin: SMA T-2 - 97.85 feet NGVD.
12. All special conditions and exhibits previously stipulated by permit number 48-00265-S remain in effect unless otherwise revised and shall apply to this modification.
13. Silt screens, hay bales, turbidity screens/barriers or other such sediment control measures shall be utilized during construction. The selected sediment control measure shall be installed landward of the upland buffer zones around all protected wetlands and shall be properly installed. All areas shall be stabilized and vegetated immediately after construction to prevent erosion into the wetlands along Turkey Lake and upland buffer zones.
14. The District reserves the right to require remedial measures to be taken by the permittee if monitoring or other information demonstrates that adverse impacts to onsite or offsite wetlands, upland conservation areas or buffers, or other surface waters have occurred due to project related activities.
15. Endangered species, threatened species and/or species of special concern have been observed onsite and/or the project contains suitable habitat for these species. It shall be the permittee's responsibility to coordinate with the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission and/or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service for appropriate guidance, recommendations and/or necessary permits to avoid impacts to listed species.
16. The wetland conservation areas and upland buffer zones and/or upland preservation areas shown on Exhibit(s) 4 may in no way be altered from their natural or permitted state. Activities prohibited within the conservation areas include, but are not limited to: construction or placing of buildings on or above the ground; dumping or placing soil or other substances such as trash; removal or destruction of trees, shrubs, or other vegetation - with the exception of exotic vegetation removal; excavation, dredging, or removal of soil materials; diking or fencing; and any other activities detrimental to drainage, flood control, water conservation, erosion control, or fish and wildlife habitat conservation or preservation.
17. The rear yard swales on Lots 48-76 shall be constructed as part of the water management system serving this phase of construction.